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DISSENTING CHURCHES,

CROWN.-COURT.

SCOTS PRESBYTERIAN.

Cnowx-‘-Cooa'r, CovENT-GARDEN, is a spacious
paved thoroughfare, leading from Bow-street into Russel-
street, the entrance at each end opening upon the two new
theatres. _

The meeting-house was erected about the year 1718, for
the Scots Presbyterian Church, under the pastoral care of
the Rev. Patrick Russel. A lease of the ground bad been
previously granted to the elders by the then Duke of Bedford.
Mr. Russel, by the interest he made with the nobility, and
other persons, cunnected with Scotland, soon raised a suffi-
cient sum ‘to discharge the debt of the building. 1tisa
large square ‘structure, with three capacious galleries of an
xrregnlar form, and is built in a substantial manner. The
vestry is taken out of one corner of the meeting, and rather
disfigures the interior appearance; otherwise the place is
neat and commbdious.

The congregation was gathered about the commencement
of the eighteenth century, by Mr. Russel above-mentioned,
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and met for a fcw years in a court in St. Martin’s-lane, pro- -
bably St. Peter’s-court, in the building now occupied by the
Quakers, which was originally a Presbyterian meeting-house.
Mr. Russel’s people consisted in a great measure of the re-
mains of an older congregation that met in the place just
mentioned, and which became extinct about the year 1710.
To these were joined a number of other persons, chiefly of
. the Scots nation, who settled in London, and united upon
the principles of discipline and church government practised
in the Church of Scotland. Prior to the settlement of the
present minister, who is an independent, the pastors of this
society were members of the Scotch Kirk. Besides the
usual services here on the Lord’s-day, there is a lecture in
the evening, and another on Wednesday evenings, the latter
altered from the morning, which was the season at its first
establishment, about six years ago. ° Both the lectures are
preached by a variety of ministers, chiefly of the Independent
and Baptist persuasions. In the vestry are portraits of two
former ministers of the church, ‘Mr. Freeland, and Mr.
Oswald.

The Pastors of this Society have been as follows :

MinNisTERS' NAMES. From To

Patrick Russel, . . . . . . . . |1710]1746
John Freeland, . . . . ... C 11747 1751
Thomas Oswald, . . . . . . . . 1752|1778
William Cruden, . . . . . .". . |1774]| 1785
James Steven, . . . . . , . . . |1787 1803
George Greig, . . * . . . . . . 805 | 18 .

PATnléz Russer.—The i’ounder of the church in
Crown Court, as already noticed, was Mr. Patrick Russel,
3 Scotsman by birth, and born about the year 1676. Of bis
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early life we have no particulars; and indeed but few facts

. relating to his history are upon record. [t is probable that
he was educated for the ministry in one of the universities of
North Britain, and being licenced to preach the gospel, la-
boured a few years in his native country. He afterwards
went to Loudon, and gathered a congregation chiefly of his
own countrymen, of which he became the first pastor in the
year 1710. His people met first in a large room in St. Mar-
tin’s Lane ; and a manuscript of London Churches, to which
we have often referred, says, that they were the remains of a
congregation which had met for many years in that place,
and dissolved 1n 1714. If this date be correct, Mr. Russel
must have gathered his church four years previous to that
event, as he was a pastor in London thirty-six vears, and died
in 1746, This carries usback to 1710, when he first col-
lected his congregation. It is very probable that the date
in the London Manuscript is wrong.

Mr. Russel was a serious judicious preacher, and instru-
mental of much good in his day. He died suddenly, Nov.
27, 1746, in the 70th year of his age, and was interred in
Bunhill -fields burial ground. The inscription upon his
tomb-stone describes merely his name, age, and the time of
his death. His funeral sermon was preached by the Rev.
John Mitchell, from Zech. i. 5. Your fathers where are
they? And the prophels do they live for ever? This dis-
course, which was published, is exiremely barren of biogra-
phical information. We may learn from it, that Mr. Russel
was a person of good ministcrial gifts and graces, unwearied
in his work, and that he ¢nforced with serious earnestness
the uncorrupted doctrine of the gospel. He was a fervent
and affectiunate preacher, and continued in his work to the
close of life, preaching but the Sunday preceding his death,

. from the apustolical exhortation, to *“ run witly patience’ the
race that is set hefore us.” His private character was or-
namental to his public one, being pious, bumble, and sincere.
He possessed an affable deportment, was accousted a good



6 HISTORY AND ANTIQUITIBRS

s —— —-
CROWN COURT.—Scoty Presdyterian.

tempered man, and was much respected in his day. During -
the disputes concerning the Trinity in 1719, he divided with
the subscribing ministers. It does not lppeutht Mr. Ros-
sel ever published any thing. He was succeeded in the pﬂ-
toral office by Mr. Freeland.

JorN FreerLaND.—This gentleman was a native of
Scotland, where he received a suitable education, and spent
the early years of his ministry. About 1740, he arrived into
England, to take charge of ,a society at Bromsgrove in Wor-
cestershire. The Presbyterian congregation in that town,
on the removal of Mr. Spilsbury (A) to Worcester, divided
upon the choice of another minister ; and Mr. Freeland was
invited to preside over the new interest. But his superior
talents and piety, after a few years, procured him an invita.
tion to settle with the Scots church in Crown Court, Lon-
don, which, from a prospect of mere extended usefulness he '
was induced to accept July the Gth 1747 ; and on the second
of September following, was set apart to the pastoral care
of that society.

Before he left Bromsgrove, Mr. Freeland bad been so
impressed with the good sense and unaffected seriousness of
Miss Green, a younger daughter of Mr. Nathaniel Green of
that town, that he had made proposals of marriage to her ;
but God had otherwise appointed. Mr. Freeland’s health
when in London soon began to decline, and going down to
Bromsgrove to try the effect of the country air, he died in a
short time amongst his former charge. This was in the year
1751. Under this severe stroke, the excellent Mr. Joseph
Williams of Kidderminster, wrote to his niece Miss Green,
a very suitable and consolatory letter, dated December 14,
1751. It may be seen in his printed diary.* This lady
afterwards married Mr. Henry Dowler of Bromsgrove, a
gentleman of considerable property; and after his death in
1762, she married again to Mr. Benjamin Humphries of

(a) The late Rev. Francis Spilsbury of Salter's Hall.
® Page 206, ed. 1807,
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the same place, and father to the Rev. John Humphries of
London. This connexion was also dissolved in 1789, and
Mrs. Humphries continued a widow till her death Dec. 7,
1802, in her 87th year. .

Mr. Freeland, we believe, never appeared in print. He
was succeeded in the pastoral office at Crown Court by Mr.
Oswald.

Tuomas Oswarp, M. A.—This gentleman was born
on the 22nd of July 1722, at Dryburg, parish of Denny,
Stirlingshire, North Britain. He was the second son of
James Oswald, and descended from a very old and respect-
able family, who had been proprictors of Dryburg ever since
the year 1747. Mr. Oswald received the early part of his
education at the parish achool of Denny, and pursued his
studies for the ministry in the university of Glasgow. He
received his licence to preach the gospel, on the yth of June
1748, from the Presbytery of Abertarpt. Soon after this,
he was chosen assistant to the late worthy Principal Tullidaff,
of the College of St. Andrew’s. During his continuancg
in this situation he gave general satisfaction. Upon the
death of Mr. Frecland, which happened at the latter end
of the year 1751, he received a call from the Scots cope
gregation i Crown Court, which be aceepted, and was
ordained by the Presbytery in London, on the 8th of April,
1758. . .

M. Oswald ontinued in Loudon sbout twenty years ;
and during that time uaited himself in marriage with a lady
of considesable fortune. Having a strong desire to spead
the remainder of his days in his native country, be resigned
his cherge at Crown Court, in the year 1772, and returned
to Scotlnnd. About that timle, his eldest brother, baving no
children, sold to him the estate at Dryburg, where be took
up his residence, aud was made a justice of the peace ;
which office Le discharged with credit to himeslf and advan-
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tage to the public. It was about the same time that he
bought considerable landed property in the county of Stirling,
celled Craigingilt. Mr. Oswald continued to reside at
Dryburg for about four years; but in 1777, he was pre-
sented to the parish ot Clackmannan, in the county of that
name. At his first settlement in this living he did not give
that sausfaction to a number of his parishioners, which
was afterwards the case. He raised his popularity with
them by resigning the choice of an assistant to their
decision ; which act confirmed him ever afterwards in their
favour.

Mr. Oswald died at Clackmannan, much beloved and
respected by his whole parish, on the 7th of December,
1787, in the 66th year of his age. His disorder was of the
nervous kind, and terminated in a decline. He was confined
but a short time, and retained the use of his faculties to the
last. Mr. Oswald was a man of the middle size, rather cor-
pulent,and of adark complexion. He possessed strong natu-~
ral abilities, which were improved by edueation and reading.
By his brethren in the ministry he was greatly esteemed, and
respected by all who had the happiness to know him.
During his residence in London, he took a conspicuous part
with some of his brethren in attempting to lessen the conten-
tion that then prevailed among the Dissenters, respecting the
Test Laws. His own views upon the subject led him to
oppose their repeal ; in which decision we are bound to pay
greater deference to the sincerity of his motives, than to the
correctness of his judgment. The habits of education, and
his close connexion with an ecclesiastical establishment,
probably contributed very much to the determination he
adopted. He was one of the ministers who went up to the
king with an address, and was received with particular kind-
ness. Mr. Oswald published only two sermons, both
preached at the Scotch church, London Wall, May 5, 1771,
upon the death of the Rev. Robert Lawson. He left a wi-
dow and four children, two sons and two daughters; the
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fbnngest of each is dead. Only one dapghter married, and
she left no family.*

WiLriam CrupeN, M. A.—This was a different per-
son from the celebrated author of the Concordance, whose
baptismal name was Alexander, and whose exploits were no
less remarkable, and worthy of beiog recorded, than those of
the renowned hero of Cervantes.+ It is not impossible but
the two Crudens were of the same family. Alexander was
born at Aberdeen ; but of William we possess no informa-
tion prior to his leaving Scotland. In the year 1774, he
was chosen to suceeed Mr. Oswald, as pastor of the Scots
congregation ia Crown-court, and continued in that relation
4ill death called him away, on the 5th of November, 1785,
when he was 6O years of age. His remains were interred in
Bunhill-fields, where, upon a stone erected over his grave,
may be seen his name, age, and the time of his death. In
the year 1787, there was published under the inspection of
Jhis friends, a volume of his sermons, They are fifteen in
number ; and to the book is prefixed a gaod likeness of the
author. Mr. Cruden was a worthy and respectable minister,
of approved talents and piety, and he lived in Loundon
greatly respected by his brethcen. We lament that the pau-
.city of our materials prevents us from giving a more minute
account of his life and chamcter.

Jamgs SteveN, M. A—Mr. Cruden was succeeded
in the pestoral office at Crown-court, after a vacancy of
about two years, by the Rev. James Steven, who settled
there in November, 1787. lIn this situation he laboured
with great acceptance and success for upwards of fifteen
years, and during that period, preached in his turn at some

*From the information of Miss Mary Oswald, niece to the above,
communicated through Mr, Hardy of London.
t See an account of his life, epxd Biog, Brit. Vol. 4. App. No. ¢,
Vou. IV. c
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b
of the most populer lectures amongst the Dissenters ; parti-
cularly at Broad-street, Hare-court, and Salters’-hall. The
utmost cardiality prevailed between Mr. Steven and his peo-
ple, and his external situation was as comfortable as that of
most ministers in London. A sense of duty, however, pre-
vailed with him to remove. Towards the latter end of the
year 1802, he was presented by Lord Eglington to the liv-
ing of Kilwinning, county of Air, North Britain; and at
the same time received an unanimous call from the pa-
rishioners. This appointment was, on his part, as umoli-‘
cited as it was unexpected. Kilwinning is a large manufac-
turing town, about twenty-five miles from Glasgow. We
are told that besides inferior considerations, that place fur-
nished him with a larger sphere of usefulness, and a higher
degree of laudable influence.* More than two thousand
souls belong to the parish, and the number of Dissenters is
small. Mr. Steven took a solemn leave of his charge in
Crown-court, on the first Sabbath in February, 1803, and
his departure from London was attended with very general
regret by Dissenters of all denominations. He still labours,
with great acceptance, at Kilwinning.

GrorceE GrE16.—After a vacancy of more than two
years and a half, Mr. Steven was succeeded by the Rev.
George Greig, who had been for a short time assistant to
Mr. Greville Ewing, at Glasgow. The church subscribed
their call to him, Aug. 26, 1805, and on the 23d of Octo-
ber following he was set apart to the pastoral office. Mr.
Greig has met with great acceptance since his settlement in
Loudon, and his church is now in a flourishing state.

¢ Theol. Mag. Vol. 3. p. 44.
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HART-STREET.

GENERAL BAPTIST.~EXTINCT.

HAn'r-S'ru.ar is a loug paved street, commencing on
the south-west side of Bow-street, a considerable portion of
one corner being occupied by the north side of the new thea-
tre royal, Covent-garden. Hart-street crosses James-street,
and terminates in Conduit-court, Long-acre. The meeting-
house, of which we are now to speak, was situated in Jon’s-
court, the name and memory of which have long since pe-
rished. We learn, however, that it was situated at the upper
end of Hart-street. The fragments of history, being all that
can be recovered respecting this place, are derived chiefly
from the valuable records belonging to the General Baptist
Society in White's-alley, with which this church stood closely
connected. By the help of these, together with some other
memorandums, we are enabled te trace the origin of this so-
ciety, as well as a tolerable correct list of the ministers who
presided over it, till the period of its dissolution.

It may be necessary to inform the reader that, at the pe-
riod of which we are speaking, the Baptist churches were
divided in their opinions respecting the propriety of laying on
of hands at the admission of members; and so tenacious
were those who practised the rite, that they made it an in-
dispensable term of communion. Their defence of the prac-
tice they grounded chiefly upon Heb. vi. 2. In the seven-
teenth century there were five General Baptist Churches in
London that contended zealously for the practice; and this
seems to have been the strong bond of their union. These
churches were White’s-alley, Glass-house-yard, the Park,
Fair-street, and Goodman's-fields. The discipline of these
churches was very strict, and though many of the members
resided at a great distance, yet they were constant and punc-
tual in their attendance. As a considerable number of their
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members resided at the west end of the town, and found the
remoteness of . their residence to be peculiarly inconvenient,
the five churches, after comsulting together, resolved to
countenance the formation of a new society, and fixed upon
Hart-street, Covent-garden, as a couvenient spot. They
appear also to have been strongly animated with a desire of
spreaditig the gospel in the western suburbs of London. In
the whole of this proceeding the united churches manifested
great caution, but at the same time discovered a disinterest-
edness of conduct that strikingly illustrated the purity of their,
principles. The sacrifice they made upon this occasion
though great, yet did not seriously affect them, as each so-
ciety was then in a very flourishing condition. A list being
returned of the number of members belonging to White’s-
alley who joined the church in Hart-street, it was found that
they amounted at least to twenty-one ; so that, if the num-
bers from the other parts of the uniou bore any proportion,
the society in Hart-street, must, at its first formation, have
been very considerable.

The first steps towards the formation of this western so-
ciety appear to have been taken in the autumn of 1691, and
at a meeting of the elders and representatives of the five con-
gregations held at White’s-alley, on the 5th of November in
that year, sundry resolutions were passed for the regulation
of the new interest. A convenient place is said to have been
taken at the Two Golden Balls, the upper end of Bow-
street, by Hart-street, Covent-garden. Mr. John Turner,
then a member and an occasional preacher at White’s-
alley, was appointed to lead the devotions of the new con-
gregution, and to provide preachers to assist him from the
other parts of the union. It was not until the 12th of April,
1692, that they were constituted a distinct society, when, at
a meeting of the elders and representatives of the five
cburches, it was determined that they should form a sixth
part of their community ; and they were set down accord-
jngly. But the unanimity between the infant society and the *



OF DISSENTING CHURCHES. 18
.
HARP-STREET.—General Baptist.
e — ——
parent churches, was not of long duration. For, by 2 me-
morsndum dated February 27, 1693, it appears that the rite
of laying on of hands had been dispensed with as to some
members who had been admitted at Hart-street, a circum-
.stance sufficient to excite the alarm of the other five churches,
and after many fruitless admonitions, eventually to dissolve
the union.  After this event, the church in Hart-street was
left in a great measure to shift for itself. But it possessed
within its own boundaries resources sufficient to meet every
difficulty ; and #t was not long before that worthy and emi-
nent man, Mr. John Piggott, then a member, was called to
preside over the church, in the relation of pastor. He was
followed by a succession of ministers, none of whom died in
connexion with this society. The church broke up about
the month of April, 1738, sfter it had exizted about forty-six
years. Most of the remaining members united with the
church m White’s-alley.
The following is a list of the ministers who served the
church in Hart-street, with the time of their settlement and
removal.

As Pastors. | As Assistants,
MinisTERs’ NANKS,

To Froml To

Joha Piggott, . . . . . . |693|i69y] — | —
Natheniel Foxwell, . .. . . . | — | — |1699|i1700
Joseph Jenkins, . . . . . . li7oeh709| — | —
Benjamim Ingram, . . . . . |1710{1729] — | —
James Smith, . . . . . . |1724}1738] — | —
Joseph Eades, . . . . - | — | — [172 1720

Jonw Piceorr.—This excellent man, like his illus-

trious friend Mr. Joseph Stennett, commenced bis ministry
in convexion with the General Baptists, and though he
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afterwards united himself with those of the particular per-
suasion, yet he preserved through life that moderation of
temper and conduct which is so’ congenial with true worth.
Mr. Piggott became the first pastor of the church in Hart-
street about the year 1693, and continued in that relation till
the cluse of 1699, when some circumstances which are not
perticularly specified, induced him to withdraw from that
connexion, and a very considerable’part of the congregation
separated with him. It is probable that about this time his
preaching became more decidedly Calvinistical ; for it seems,
be was charged with supporting by his vote, a proposition
“ to change the faith and discipline of the church.” Imme-
diately upon this breach, Mr. Piggott and his friends engaged
another building for the purpose of carrying on the worship
of God, in Little Wild-street, where he continued to preach
with great acceptance and success till the time of his death,
as we shall relate more particularly when we come to speak
of him under that article,

NartaanNiEL FoxweLL.—Notwithstanding the above
breach, which made a considerable depression in the affairs
of this society, yet it was not long before it became reinstated
upon its former principles. For this purpose, application
was made to the church in White’s-alley, and to other
churches in the same connexion, for assistance. It seems,
tbat, at the time of the separation, there was another minis-
ter who officiated as assistant to Mr. Piggott, and preached

_chiefly in the forenoon. This was Mr. Nathaniel Foxwell,
who came from Norwich. Upon Mr. Piggott’s departure,
he was invited to take upon him the pastoral charge, which
he declined. The church in White’s-alley having cenceived
some dislike to him, though upon what account is not meén-
tioned, he was dismissed from being morning preacher in
Hart-street, December 29th, 1700. Mr. Foxwell will
again full under our notice in the progress of this work.
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Josepr JenkinNs.—The church in Hart-street was
without an elder till the latter end of 1702, when Mr. Joseph
Jenkins was chosen to that office. He was originally a
member at White’s-alley, and bad been-for some time an oc-
casional preacher to that church. He appears to have been
held in great esteem, and it was not without some difficulty,
and till after repeated applications, that they were induced
to part with him. Mr. Jenkins continued about seven years
in this conuexion ; but in the year 1709, resigned his charge;
and accepted a call from the cuugregation at High-hall,
Cow-lane, a place that has been already mentioned in this
work. From thence he removed to the Park in Southwark,
‘where he will aguin fall under our notice.

BeNjAMIN INemAM.—After the departure of Mr.
Jenkins, the congregation was for some considerable time
without a pastor. It is not quite ascertained who was his -
immediate successor, but the next name that occurs upon
our list is that of Mr. Benjamin Iogram. We know but
very litle concerning this gentleman. He was certainly
here in 1717, and continued pastor of the church in Hart-
street till the latter end of 1728, when he removed to take
charge of another society of the same persuasion in Fair-

street, Horsleydown.

Jaurs SMiTH—Mr. Ingram was succeeded in the el-
dership at Hart-street, sometime in the year 1724, by Mr.
James Smith. We know nothing respecting this person,
excepting that he continued his relation to this society, till
the church broke up about April, 1738. He then joined
in communion with the church in White’s-alley, and assisted
in the ordination of Mr. Ashworth, at that place, July S,
1740. Mr. Smith survived the dissolution of his.church
several years. '

Josepn EApEs.—This gentleman is introduced in the
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capacity of assistant to Mr. Smith, which office he sustained
for a few years. His name occurs in a manuscript list of
Dissenting ministers in London, in the year 1727, and which
is now before us. In the year 1728, or nesr upon that time,
Mr. Eades removed to take charge of a General Baptist So-
ciety at Saffron Walden, in Essex, where he continued to
preach upwards of forty years, and died greatly respected,
November 26, 1760. He was a worthy and pious man,
and possessed respectable talents for the ministry. He is
not to be confounded with another person of the same name,
who preached in thciiﬂ'-bighway, and will be mentioned in
tis proper place.

It is probable that the duwh in Hart-stre¢t had various
other ministers who officiated in the capacity of assistants,
‘but their names have not reached us. The procediog ac-
count is much more particular than could at shis time of day
‘have been well expected.

e
ADELPHI.

BAPTIST.—RXTINCT.

Tm: Chapel in James-street, Adelphi, was built by.some

of the Particuler Baptist denomination whe eepa-
rated from the church in Grafton-street, upon the choice of
the Rev. Johu Martin to sacceed Mr. Messer, in 1774.
They assembled forthe first-two or threeyears in an.auction-
“room, in Berwick-street, Soho, and were supplied by va-
rious ministers. About the year 1777 they erected the pre-
sent chapel, and after a few years chose Mr. John Sandys,
from Shrewsbury, for their ‘pastor. Under his ministry
they coutinued but a few years, and never chose 2 :sucoassor.
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After remaming for some time i a destitute state, and their
nombers continuing to decline, they determined to dissolve
their cinirch union, and separated about the year 1789. The
mreeting-house was afterwards sold to some Calvinistic Me-
thodists, who have occupied it evér since.  Fifty pounds of
the money prodaced by the sale was presented to the Baptist
fund by the hands of Mr. Aaton West. The new managers
having fitted up the chapel with an organ and a reading-desk,
invited Mt. Johh Henry Meyer, and Mr. Thomas Harper,
to conduct the public worship, which they continued to do
for a short time jointly ; hot Mr. Harper being requested to
settle there wholly, continued the resident minister for about
two years and a half. In 1791, the mmanagers wishing to
have the place regulated according to the plan of Tottenham-
court Chapel, by an alternate change of ministers, they of-
fered to Mr. Harper the situation of prayer-reader and occa-
sional preacher, which, however, he refused;- and their
connexion was in consequence dissolved. 'The place is now
managed agreeably to this plan, and the seats are ticketed in
the manner usual in places of the'same description.

Of Mr. Sandys, we will present the reader with the fol-
lowing brief account.

JouN SANDYS was born in the month of September,
1749, at Ulverstone, in Lancashire. At about seventeen
years of age, he was sent to Mr. Ryland’s academy at
Northampton. From thence he removed to London, to be
under the tuition of the Rev. William Clarke, who trained
a few young men to the ministry in his own house at Dock-
head. At the close of his studies he went to Colghester as a
probationer, and remained there five or six weeks, but did
not accept the call of the people to become their pastor.
He then went to Shrewsbury, where he was ordained, and
continued about seven years. In 1781, or the following
year, he removed to London, and took charge of the con-
gregation in the Adelphi. His next removal was to Wat-

Vou.1V. »
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ford, Herts, where he continued five or six years, and thea
removed to Harlow, .in Essex. There he staid about five
years, when he mude his last earthly removal to Hammer-
smith, He was connected for some time with the Baptist
congregation in that town, but resigned previously to his
death, which happened Nov. .24, 1803, when he was 54
years of age.* It may be expected ‘that we should refer to
the .circumstances attending his removal from Shrewsbury,
and which in a great measure influenced his subseguent
changes. They related to some money transactions, the
particulars of which are detailed in a pamphlet published by
the Rev. Jobn Martin, in 1795, and entitled, “ The Case
of the Rev. Jobn Sandys,” &c. in which he is umrely excul-
pated from any blame in that matter.

YORK-BUILDINGS.

INDEPENDPENT.~RXTINCT.

IN the early part of the last century there was a meeting-
house in York-buildings in the Strand, occupied by a society
of Independents ; but very little is known concerning it.
Maitland omits it in his list of places licensed in 1758 ; nor
is it mentioned in the manuscript account of London
Churches, so often referred to in this work. It is, how-
ever, enumerated in a list of churches in the year 1727;
and we find a reference made to it as far back as 1688. In
* the year last mentioned, Mr. STRETTON, jun. son to Mr.

Richard Stretton, ejected from Petworth in Sussex, and

* From the information of the Rev. John Martin.
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mentioned in this work,* was the settled minister in York-
buildings. With the history of Mr. Stretton, jun. we are:
entirely unacquainted, nor do we know the name of his suc-
cesser.

In the year 1727, Mr. JorN BoND was the pastor of.
this society. We know nothing of the history of this gentle-
than, excepting that he died in. February, 1740, at the age
of 43. It is probable that his church dissolved some years
before his death, otherwise Maitland would have mentioned
the meeting-house. His congregation must at one period
have been considerable ; as, we find that, in 1727, bhe had
two assistants. These were Mr. JoserH.AsSTLEY, and
Mr. JouN Frercnzr. Mr. AsTLEY removed to Guest-
wick in Norfolk, in October 1729, and in March in 173%,.
was discharged for irregularities, He afterwards conformed,
and received episcopal ordination from the bishop of Nor-
wich. Mr. FLETCHER was sen to a minister at Hull in
Yorkshire, and educated under Dr. Ridgley, in London..
He began his ministry as assistant to Mr. Bond, and at the
latter end of 1728 removed to Bradfield in Norfolk, where
he was ordained in August, the followiug year. In this ob-
scure sitnation he continued all his days, though a man of.
considerable abilities. He died June 30, 1773. A very
honourable character of him, drawn.up, it is said, by a gen-
tleman of the establishment who perfectly knew him, ap-
peared. not long after in one of the public papers of the.
county of Norfolk. ’ .

* See Haberdashers'-ball..
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ST. MARTIN’S-LANE.

PRESBYTERIAN~—RBXTINCT.

IN thelatter part of the seventeenth century, the Presbyterians
had a meeting-house in St. Martin’s-lane, probably the one
in St. Peter’s-court, now occupied by the Quakers. As the
church existed but a few years, and expired in the early part
of the succeeding century, very little can now be gathered of
its history. Mr. Gabriel Sangar, who was ejected from the
parish of St. Martin’s, gathered the society from amongst
his former hearers, and preached to them as often as the
turbulent state of the times would allow. He was a grave
and peaceable Divine, but met with much rough usage as
well under the persecution of Laud, as after the Restora-
tion. Upon being silenced he thought it his duty to remain
in the parish with his former flock, and to visit them that
desired him, especially during the pestilence. The Oxford
Act drove him from place to place; but when the king
issued his declaration for liberty, his former hearers intreated
him to return, and he preached to them amidst much un-
manly opposition from his successor, Dr. Lamplugh, till
the time of his death, which happened in May, 16768, when
- he had completed his 70th year.®

We cannot discover the name of Mr. Sangar’s successor,
and only know that a Mr. HuMPHREYS was the last pas-
tor. The manuscript of London Churches before quoted
says, that the church dissolved in 1714 ; but that event pro-
bably took place a few years earlier. Mr. Patrick Russel,
who gathered the. church in Crown-court about 1710,
preached first in St. Martin’s-lane, and some of his people
bad been members of the old church.

® Calamy's Acc. p. 7.
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‘GREAT CASTLE-STREET, LEICESTER FIELDS.

Tms was originally a French Protestant chapel, and stood
on the eastern side of the street, not far from Hemming’s-
row. It was built at the expence of the government in the
reign of Charles II. for the Refugees who fled to this coun-
try for protection from the persecution of Louis XIV.
Their number was at that time very considerable, but being
- diminished by death, the remuant left this place about half
a century ago, in favour of a smaller one situated in Moor-
street, Soho, where a small interest still assembles. Mait-
land mentions this place in his list, under the year 1738.
When the French Protestants left it, the place was occupied
successively by various societies, chiefly for temporary pur-
poses; but, it is appprehended that no distinct church was
ever formed there. The Scots church in Crown-court en-
gaged the place for a short period whilst their own was re-
pairing. It has been disused as a place of worship for more
than twenty years, and is now the Court of Requests.

There has subsisted for a number of years a society of
religious persons, who meet on a Thursday evening, after
the hours of business, in a private house, on the opposite
side of the street. The persons who compose this assembly
are of the Calvinistic persuasion, and conduct the worship
amongst themselves, any member having the privilege of
praying and exhorting.
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ORANGE-STREET.

CALVINISTIC METHODISTS.

A LTHOUGH the people who meet at the above place, dor
not strictly fall under the denomination of Dissenters, yet, as
the place is licensed under the Act of Toleration, and is
supplied by ministers who call themselves Dissenters, there
would be an impropriety, in excluding it altogether from a
place in the present work.

ORANGE-sTREET Chapel belonged originally to the
French Protestant Refugees, and was erected for their use
in the reign of King Charles II. The successors of these
much injured persons continued to occupy the place till the
year 1776, when the well-known Mr. Toplady entered into
an engagement with the trustees for the use of the chapel on
Sunday and Wednesday evenings. It was upon this spot
that he closed his ministerial labours, after a term of two
years and three months, in the year 1778.

Mzr. Toplady was assisted in his ministerial work by Dr.
ILLiNGwWORTH, who supplied his lectures during his last
illness. But he was succeeded in his regular engagements
at Orange-street by that late valuable minister and eminent
preacher, Mr. Ricmarp Cecit. With him was asso-
ciated the Rev. HENRY FosTER, the present minister of
Clerkenwell ; and the late Mr. Joun EvYRE, of Rams
Chapel, Homerton, occasionally gave his assistance. In
the course of a short period, Mr. Cecil and Mr. Foster en-
tered into an engagement with the parishioners of St. Mar-
tin’s, for the use of the chapel of ease in Long Acre, which
having obtained, they removed the congregation from
Orange-street to that place. After their removal, the
French Protestants not being able to support the expences
of the chapel in Orange-street, were obliged to relinquish
it, and the place was shut up. In a short time it was re-
opened by some persons who being likewise unable to sup-
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port the expences, the doors were again closed. Whilst
in this state, a few friends of the Rev. Charles De Coetle-
gon, preacher at the L